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ST. JOSEPH'S CHURCH MOUNTMELLICK

Masses: Sundays 8, 9.30, 11 a.m.
Weekdays: 7.30 a.m.
Mass at 7.30 p.m. on holy days; during Lent and October;

first and third Mondays of each month; first Fridays and

special Feasts.

Confessions: Saturdays 11 a.m.—2 p.m.; 7—8.30 p.m.
Eve of First Fridays and Holy days, 7—=8.30 p.m.

Sodality Days from 7 p.m.

Baptism: 11 a.m. Saturday Mass.

Marriages: By arrangement.

Funerals: Arrive at 7 p.m. Mass at 10 a.m.

Leave for Cemetery at2 p.m.

ST. MARY’S CHURCH CLONAGHADOO
Mass: Sunday 10 a.m.
Weekdays, Evening Mass on First Fridays, frequently

during Lent and October and on Special occasions.

Marriages, Baptisms and Funerals by arrangement.



Most Rev. Patrick Lennon, D.D., as Auxiliary Bishop to Most Rev. Dr. Keogh, was
Parish Priest of Mountmellick [rom July 1966 to December 1967,

BISHOF'S HOUSE,
CARLOW,

Dear Father Crowley,

The publication of this verbal and
vigsual record of parish building in
Mountmellick gives me a welcome
opportunily to say ‘thank you' to the
" people of the parish. It was in Mount-

mellick thai I came Lo appreciate more
decply the mcaning of goodness and
loyalty, and the memory of my all-ton-
short residence there will always re-
main with me.

For many years there has heen a
steady stream of emigrants from the
town, due to the lack of emplovment
opportunities, Mayv one hope thal new
mitiatives by the State and by the

people  themselves may lessen  this
tragic outflow.
With every good wish and hlessing,
I am,
Sincerely Yours,

o PATRICK LENMNON
Bishop of Kildare and Leighlin,
Carlow,
22nd November, 1971,
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CY.MS. CINEMA

Officially opened in March, 1952

by President Sean T. O'Kelly
Very Rev, T, H, Burbage, P.P., V.F.. acquired the site and
built the Cinema 50 as to provide entertainment locally
for the people of the parish. It seals six hundred. Any

profits that accrue "are devoted to the Parish Building
Fund.

Architect 1 Michael Scott.
Contractor: Rodgers, Mavan,

Cost: £22.000.
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Rock Boys’ and Girls’
National School

Officially opened in September 1959,

It replaced the old school which
started as a hedge school in 1827 In
18451 there were 67 on the rolls.

This school consists of two class-
ronms, indoor teilets with running
water and a reachers’ room.

Heating is by two convector fuel
burning heaters. Tt is fully wired and
supplicd with lights and sockets.

There are 60 pupils on rolls and
there are two teachers.

Architect: Board of Works,
Contractor: B, Keane, Templemore.

Cost: £5,600, of which the parmsh
contributed E700.
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ST. JOSEPELRS CHURCH

Built in 1878. Extension blessed and opened

on March 19th, 1965.

The extension Lo the parnish church
converted a  huilding  which  was
rectangular to a cruciform shape.

The addition comprises a transept,
sanctuary, side chapel, bovs' priests
and working sacristies and boiler
house. The transept measures B6ft. x
37ft. and the sanctuary is 30t n
depth.

The building is constructed with
reinforced concrete walls, faced exter-
nally with limestone, lined internally
and plastered.

A special  feature i3 the large
windows lighting the transept. These
are in cut limestone with decorative
rlass.

The roof of the church s slated and
that on the sacristy block is copper.

Internally, the sanctuary is raised
3t. over the nave and the floor is
marble.

The windows are glazed with col-
oured plass in geometrical pattern.
The ceilings are arched and construct
ed in fihrous plaster. A special feature
has been made of the crossing of the
nave and transept, comprising decor
ative groined panelling,

MNew vinyl tiled feors have becn
laid v the old and mew sections.

Top left: An old picture of 5t Joseph's
Church, taken many years ago.

Bortom  left: St Joseph's Church,
Mountmellick, showing cxtension.

Top right: At lunch aflter church ex-

tension, President de Valera and Fr.

Burbage. P.P.. Mountmellick, 1940-
1968,

Bottom right: President de Valera
leaving after the solemn blessing of
the extension by Most Rev. Dr. Keogh.

The new work 15 desipned in such
a manner as to fit in with existing
amd form one unified design.

The church is heated by hot water
from an oil fired hoiler,

MNew paving has heen  providid
arcund the church. In the front the
paving is laid in a decorative pattern
anid there are mew gates and railings.

Architect:
J. R, Boyd Barrett, KC55, ARIBA,
FRIAL
Contraeior:
Sweeney, Portarlington.
Cost:
£ 100, O,
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Clonaghadoo
Boys’ and Girls’
National School

Officially opened and blessed in
March, 1967

by Most Rev. Dr. Lennon

This school replaced the old school
which was buoilt in 1912-"13 at a cost
to the parish of £700.

It is a very finc modern school with
pil-fired central heating; separate in-
door toilet and cloakroom for each
class.

There are three classrooms and a
teachers” room. There are 72 pupils
on rolls and the staff consists of three
teachers,

Architect: Board of Works.
Contractor: Broomfield, Portlacise.

Cost: £12,000, of which the parish
subscribed £1,500.
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Owenass Hall

Officially opened on March 19th, 1969

This was a galvanised iron structure
erected at the wear of the Catholic
Institute in 1902, It was used for
Crances, Badminton, ete, and at one
perind it served as a Cinema. As its
condition had very much deteriorated,
it was demolished in 1968 and was
replaced by a new concrete hall with
proper toilets, ceniral heating, efo.;
the old Billiard Room was extensively
renovated.

It is now the Community Centre
for the Parish. Many Societies hold
their mectings there, It is used hy
the Blood Transfusion Service, Red
Cross, ete, Concerts, Whist Drives,
Bingo, Socials and Dances help o
raise funds for many worthy causes.

Architect:

James AL Dovle, FRIAIL 22 Herbert
Place, Dublin.

Contractor:
James Spollen, Tullamore,

Cosi:
£14 500

Top right: Official opening,

Mr. James Spollen,
Builder; Mr. James Dovle, Architect.
and Rev. C. Crowley, P.P.

Centre: View of hall set for luncheon
at the official opening.

Bottom  right:  External view of
Owenass Hall and Billiard Room.
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St. Mary’s Church, Clonaghadoo

Opened and blessed by
Most Rev. Dr. Lenmon
on 17th March, 1970.

It replaced the old church built in
1825-27 at the cost of abowt £1,000
This old ¢hurch replaced “a humble
thatched strocture built by the people
ahout 1777 in close proximity to the
ancient “Mass-Place”, the position of
which is still indicated by a vener-
able “Mass-tree’.

In 1967 the old Church was in bad
repair and the decision was taken to
build & new church.

The new Church was erected on a
site bought from James Gorry and
work commenced on the Feast of St
Joseph, March 19¢h, 1969.

Architect:

J. R. Boyd Barrett, KC55, ARIBA,
FRIAL

Builder:
Charles Breen, Mountrath.

Cost:
38, (KW

Top left: Clonaghadoo new church
with old church and new school in
background.

Bottom left; Old church and ceme-
tery, Clonaghadoo, 1827-1970.

Right: New church, Clonaghadoo.

Architect's Note

The new church in Clonaghadoo has
been designed in a modemn siyle and
has accommodation for about 450
people. It is situated on a fairly bevel
gite off (he main road from Mount-
mellick to Tullamore and is [lanked
on two sides by a public soad.

The general effect imternally is of
lightness and grace. The alar and
tabernacle have been taken from the
old church and are redesigned and
arranged  to comply  with modern

liturgy. The ambo is of new design
Mo altar mail is  provided. The
sanctuary , which is raised above the
general floor, is pemerous in its pro-
portions and allows ample room for
concelebrated Mass. The confessionals
are built in and they also form the
entrance porch. The windows occupy
most of the wall space and are of
leaded lights and incorporate the
stations of the cross. The general
lighting through the windows @5 warm
and bright. The church is heated by
gil-fired central heating.
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The Sanctuary, Clomaghadoo Church

Externally the church iz expressed
by a turret which is dominated by a
bronze cross, The walls are faced with
rough cast plaster with smooth cement
bands. The window frames and door
are made with teak.

Parking spaco for a lmited number
of cars has been provided off the
public road. The structural desizn con-
sists of reinforced cone-walls Tinished
internally with patent plaster lining.
The roof structure is steel and is
covered with slabs and weatherproof
membrane. The ceiling s a simple
folded structure of suspended plastier,
The seating iz mahogany and és ar-
ranged so that everyvone faces the
altar. )

The interior width and length of the
church iz sixty-five feet and the height
at the cemtre iz twenty-five feet

Simplicity and restraint are the
dominant features and there is little
applied decoration,

J. E. Bovd Barrett

Right: Bishop Lennon assisted by Rev.

Fr. Crowley, P.P., blessing the new

Church of 5t. Mary, Clonaghadoo—
March 17th, 1970.
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Interior Clonaghadoo Church

Letter from
Zambia

Catholic Church,
Maamba F.00.,
Via PO, Cherna,
Zambay.
15/10/1971

Dear Fr, Crowley,

I have just removed a set of builders
and their helpers from the ahove
address after finishing a small church
modelled on wours in Clonaghadoo.
Even though il s nol a patch on Clon
aghadoo W 15 the admiration of all
who have seen it so far, Thanks a
million for all the encouragement and
mgpiration and for the model supplied
by Mrs., Dunne.

We are still only starting to paint
it. We have the altar support in pos-
itiom; it is a block of coal about T x

3 x 2 we carved it out of a very hip
lump. There are no windows in our
chyrch; the lighting is indirect.

This Maamba is a new coal mine
opened about four vears ago. It is at
the back of beyond . . . fifty miles
from Lusaka our only reasonable buy-
ing town in the south. We recicon the
church will cost 15 or 20 thousand
Kwasha (10/-). Our roof is plain
asbestos sheets painted on the under
side. We erected a steel frame on lighl
comer stanchions and steel purloing
just as yours. I tell vou it is nice and
if you are passing this way do call
and gsee it We are so thankful [or
your plan,

We had of course no architeol or
engimeer. A steel company did the
stee]l side of # for us. We did the
remainder ourselves, Thiz  Mission
was started by a Jesuit Father living
here for a few weeks over sty vears
apo,

Our sacristy is small with flat cor-
rugated roof at 10" high. S5ix of the
walls are slotted for windows., Tem-

perature here s now abouwt 106 from
10 am. to 3 pm. It will rise to 108.

We put the confessionals in flat
topped fromt porch to match  the
sacristy at the bacl.

With best wishes.

Sncerely vours,
Bro. P. McElduff,
Killeigh.

UP OFFALY

We wish o recond our most
sincere  {hanks 1o Mr. Armnold
Crawford for his valuable help
in  supplying  the  splendid
selection of photographs.

Congratulatwons 4o Miss Frances
Moss, our very efficient parish
secretary, on her recent en-
Eagement.
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New Schools -

St. Joseph's G.N.S., St. Patrick’s B.N.5. To be blessed and oificially opened on

By 1967 the Girls' School was com
pletely cutdated and very much over-
crowded. Bishop Lennon, then Parish
Friest, took the initial steps towards
a mew school by procuring a site, ete.
Howewver, in 1968, it was obvious that
the Boys' School also was ocercrowd-
ed and below modern standards in
heating, hygiene, etc. Accordingly, it
was suggested to the Department of
Education that there would be con-
siderable =aving in  building two
schools now as a single block rather
than ancther scparate school later om,
In February 1969 the Department
agreed te this propesal on condition
that the Infant Bovs, who up to now
had attended the Girls” School, would
in future attend the Bows' school
Wark was begun on the site in Sep-
tember 1969 and the schools were
occupied in May 1971,

The mew boys’ and givls' primary
schools are sitrated convenient to the
L
The accommodation in each school
comprizes ten classrooms, 25ft. x 24
Each clasgroom is a separate umit with

14

December 12, 1971

lavatories and cloakroom  attached.
There is provision for large practical
areas, principal's room, office and
teachers’ rooms.

The General Purpose rooms are
40ft. x 3t each with kitchen and
store and these form a link between
the two schools,

The bailding is constructed on a
piled foundation. The walls are
cavity comstruction, finished with
bes-stome, The windows are steel and
the external doors are teak,

The internal decoration has been
carried out in a selection of bright
colours and the classroom windows
are fitted with coloured curiains. The
floers are winvl tiled, laid in a
decorative pattern and harmonise
with the peneral colour scheme,

The building iz heated Sv hot water
from a central oil fired boiler, Electric
light is up to full standard so that the
buildings mray be used by night.
Adequate plugs are provided for
cleaning and other services.

The furniture is modern type, de-
signed to suit present day standards.

The front of the school has heen
laid out in tarmacadam and flower
boxes. At the rere dhere is a large
playground, part of which is devoted
to baskethall,

The buildings forin a self contained
group and are a pleasing addition to
the town,

Architect =
I. R. Boyd Barrett, KCS5, ARTABA,
FRIAL 5 Camden Place, Cork.
Consulting Enginecr:
John O'Donovan, BE, AMICE, 41
South Mall, Cork,
Quantity Surveyor:
James Shechan, FRICS, 20 South
Mall, Cork.
Contracior:
J. Gorman & Co. Ltd, Lvster St.,
Arhlone,
Cost:

£1530,0:0, of which the parish paid
£25,000.



Girls” School

Mountmecllick

EXTRACTS FROM TIIE
ANMNALS OF THE
FRESENTATION CONVENT

On Monday after Low Sunday, April
¥ird, 1834, the first Presentation
School was opened in the present
Parochial House, “the lower rooms and
a krge hall of which were thought Lo
e suitable for schools™ In  the
Summer of that vear however, “Lhe
wvercrowded  stale of  the schools
began to tell very much on the health
of nuns and children, and sickness
broke out among the latter to an
alarming extent. Though the sisters
had given up all the apartments in the
First floor of the house, even to a large
hall and gate entrance, these with four
large rooms, did not provide sufficient
space. Fr. Healy, PP, s=aw immodiate-
Iy that something should be done, to
provide fitting school accommaodation,
and building undertaken for that pur-
pose, but it was found, on enguiries
heing made, that no lease could he
nhtained of the present dwelling
house, so it was then unsafe to erect
schools there. This was a preat trial
to the nuns as the house and prounds
were good and answered admirably
to conventual purposes | .

The [lollowing Aprl, 1853, the
maller was laid hefore His Lordship,
Maosi Reverend D, Healy, who regret-
ted wvery much that the nuns should
be oblized o change their abode to
some olher quarter of the town. He
knew all the advantages of their
present  dwelling  and  its  beauotiful
and healthful position. . . The Bishop
directed Fr. Healy (o call a meeting
of the Catholic inhabitants of the town
and to represent the urgent wamds of
the nuns and Lo ask their charitable
assistance in collecling  funds, also
to consult them on where to procure
a site for the building. The kind
Bishop gave £50 as his subscription.
to commence the work and Fr. Healy
added another £50 from his slender
TEans,

Soon after the Bishop's departure
Fr. Healy hastened to carry out his
Londship’s wishes. The meeting was
called and the object of it made known
o the people, asking them for their
co-operation in the work, They most
penerously Tesponded to the appeal
by placing the swm of CH0M0 at Fr.
Healy's disposal without delay.

The difficulty now arose ahout get-
ting a phlot of ground for the building,
it was found that there was oot a

Exterior view of New School

One of the Classrooms of the New School
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Top left: 0ld Presentation Convent
School, built in 1883,

Bottom left: New schools: St Joseph's
Girls and St. Patrick™s Boys.

single site for such a purpose, either
in or about the town, except the
ground occupied by an old distillery-
yard and some ruined buoilding inodt,
amongst them the former dwelling-
house. This was sitvated at the en-
trance to the town and ecould be
had for the sum of £200, subject to
a vearly rent of £15.

The place was anything but at-
tractive, Honwever, there was no choice
teft and finally Father Healy became
the purchaser. The documents wers
drawn up, a lease for ever duly sign-
ad, and the premises handed over to
the nuns.

The schools were commenced at
once, a detached building a few vards
to the rear of the dwelling-house.
There woere madlerials on the prounds
useful for the builling and Fr., Healy
superintended the work in persom,
living almost in the place. The build-
ing propressed rapidly, and the old
dwelling-house was repaircd and fit-
ted up for the nuns, as there could
put be any hope of building a Con-
vent at present, the funds being in-
sufficient.

In April, 1856, the new schools were
completed, They stood a few yards
to the rere of the Convent. To reach
them the Sisters crossed over a picce
of waste ground, occupied by roited
walls and old buildimgs, about an
acre in extent, Thiz was the inlended
site for the Conmvent garden.

The schools consisted of two large
rooms and a hall entremce, the Infant
School to the right, capable of =ac-
commodating about 70 children, the
upper school for grown pirls a much
bigger room. Both were well Hghted
and well ventilated. They were opoh-
ed on the 12th May with an attend-
ance of 250 children.

The usual month of May devotions
and processions were carried ouwt. It
was a stniking comtrast to former
years, A path was cleared around the
grounds. It was a strange sight, the
children wending their way amidst
the old distillery ruins and singing
the praises of Mary with as much
reverance as if the place bloomed
with lalies and roses.

185%

The school, built by Father Healy
in the wyezr 1856, was n late wears
found to he quite inadequate to the
prisent largpe attendance of children.
It was with great difficulty that the
Sisters were able to carry oul ef-
ficiently the code of Board regulations
m schools of detached buildings for
some of the old Convenl dwelling-
house was still wilised for schood
purposes. These rooms were badly
ventilated and most inconvenicnt.

Our new Pastor, Fr. Doyle, per-
ceived this wamnt immedialely when
he first visited the Convent, and at
once tried to remedy it He proposed
to have the new schools on the only
available space, partly in front of
the Cosivent, om the sate of the old
building, which should be gquickly re-
moved. A plan of the schools was
drawn up by Mr. Hapue {archilect)
which fully realised the wishes of
Fr. Doyl and the Communily, A
large school building to be connected
by a passage wilh the Convent, the
school-rooms, two in number, capable
of containing 300 children each. There
was alse a classroom and a music-
R,

The funds for carrying owl ths
msl necEssary work were at presemt
very small, The estimate {or the build-
ing was over £800 and it wax cal-
culated that another sum of £200
should be expended before the school
could e made fit for accommodation.
We had on hands £100, the residue
of Fr. Murphy's will to the Convent,
and the good kind Bishop, Dr. Walshe,
sert Fr. Doyle another £100 when he
heard of the work, The remainder was
to be mised by a Bazaar.

The first stone of the new build-
ing was laid on the 5Hth February,
1883, under the special protection of
Our Lady of Perpetual Succour, in
whoge aid, under this title the Sisters
relied with faith and confidence.

It was a most arduous undertaking
tor collect funds for Lhe building, and
just mow all the energies of the Com-
munity were reguired to meet the
constantly increasing demands  on
their tirne.

But all wnited to further the in-
terest of the Bazaar which was 1o
be held in the new building at the

end of October. It was considersed by
many people a very unfortunate year
to hold such a thing, as there was
much depression in the country and
some local failures in business that
cast hundreds out of work.

Still -the nuns had no choice left
They considered that a Bazaar would
be the kast expensive way of collect-
ing money and they were nol dis-
appuointed as the Bazsar, when held
in October, was a wonderful success
and realised the sum of £650 clear of
all expenses.

In the month of February, 1886, the
new schools were occupied The
building had been completed for the
past year, but wam of necessary
funds prevented the Community from
furnishing them. With the utmost in-
convenience the Sisters carmied on
their school duties for the last year
or more. During a part of that time
the classes were taught in the open
air, then under a canvas tent in the
most  inclement  weather. Discipline
and order were maintained omly by
the greatest difficulties and to prepare
the children for result examdinations
was a most grduous enterprise. But
now all ohstacles to the future im-
provement of the children have been
removed, The new schools are fully
furnished with all requisies for car-
rying oul the programme of education
in every detail.

The attendance in the advanced
department numbered 180, and owver
&0 in the Infaml School during the
month of February.

The Sisters thoroughly orgzmised
the schools, and established rules to
promote order and discipline.”

The Boys’ School
Mountmellick

Up 4o 1878, the boys allended
school in the Catholic Institule. In
that year, when the Church was opea-
ed the bovs school was transferred
1o the old Chapel in Graigue. It was
not until 1909-10 that Fr. Lalor, PP,
succeeded in having a new school
erected onm a site provided by ilhe
Catholic Young Men's Society.

The school consisted of ome room
divided by plass partitions inte three
rooms. The oost was £1,000, of which
the parish contributed £350. Sub-
sequently two further rooms were
added and other improvements carried
out.
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Fr. Paul Devereaux explains the thankless

task of being . . .

A Primary School Manager

NOT MANY PEOPLE understand how
our Primary Schools work, Mostly
they know that the Parish Priests
are in charpe, or that in some vague
way the clerpy have control. Beyvond
that, they know wery little of what
is involved, Maybe they don't know
hecause they do not appreciate just
how important  schools are,  simply
hecause we have them—many waormen
were terribly inlerested in the wote
until they got it, men too.

1 don't know how lay people feel
about clerical control or what  our
national school teachers think, thoeugh
1 have hcard some say they would
nol like to see the present syslem
changed, | expect that people who
favour us favour our having control
and that those who doo’'t or who are
anti-clerical waould like to see the
parish pricsts kicked o altopether,

MAINTENANCE

What diwes the managerial system
mvolve? I involves everything thal
has 16 dis with the upkeep inside and
cutside of the school buildings. 1t
means the cmpleyment of a school
eleaner or  cleancrs and  supplying
them with all the necessary reguirc-
ments, toilel paper, soap and washing
powder, disinfectants, mops, eoal, ete,

Don't forget the time and energy.
If o fuse poes you replace it, if extra
keys are required vou supply  them,
If a lavatory bowl is choked or a
cistern overtlivwing wvou are fold—a
short nole from the headmaster on a
clip of copybook paper is sent over
from school to presbytery. [ once
rodded the sewerapge tanks of both
buys and girls schools —a pleasant
task. I had some help, thank God, but
the job cost nothing,

And the school grounds are parl
of the manager's concern — the tidy
towns will comment — and if they
are well kept hoth the teachers and
the children will henefit.

PARTIAL GRANTS
On the question of grants — they
are only available in respect of heat-

ing and cleaning. Improvements and
cxtensions o the school also gualily

18

for granl, but in the actual running
of  lhe school only  heating  and
cleaning are covered. Application for
money for anything else will be met
by the Department with the reply
that such items do not gualify Tor
eramnl.

The prant for a girls” schoeol that
I once had charge of was £30 and
for a bovs ERR. T had £108 per vear
to look after two schools, 1 spent
well over double that amount and
any . whom 1 have spoken ahout
their snuation had the same sorry
tali. In my present parish there are
lwo Jarge  schoels under the man-
ager's care. The total staff between
the two is forty.

The situation in the  technical
schools s quite different. There the
grants are total. The full amount is
paid by lhe State, A caretalier is
appointed  who wil]l ook after  the
heating and cleaning and genceal up-
ke

[ know becouse | worked inoa
Voeational school fur some years. He
will  keep the grounds, mow  the
lawns, ete. Yoo mav even have two
depending on the size of the school
ar a man Lo leok after the bovs
section and a woman for the girls.
Thi contrast belween these two types
of schowls s striking,

The clerical managers or  the
Catholic IMerarchy certainly pay for
their control, To arguc (hat this s
free education, is to misunderstand
the proper meaning of the term. You
may not have to pay directly in fees
for the education of wyour children,
but vou will have to put it on the
plate in the church or in an envelope.

NEW SCHOOLS

In the provision of new schools
the local contribution reaches formid-
ahle proportions. The manager must
ohlam a sile—oflen in open compet-
ition with large speculators. In the
city centre of Dublin, no parish can
possibly buy land for schonls, and
only the Corporation ¢an assist in
such provigion, as huilding zites are
now, in many cases, selling at over
E100.000 per acre.

Having acquired a suitable site for

a new school the manaper negotiates
with  the Department  in order  to
ecstablish what  proportion  of  the
building costs will he borne by the
parish, It can be as high as one third.
In exceplional cases the grant may
be total, but this is very rare. And
m all casee, the long process of en-
gaging  architects, negotiating  with
the: lTocal authorities, seeking approval
frum beth diocesan and departmental
authorities s eotircly up Lo the man-
A,

Fven when all plans  have boen
sanctioned, planning  permission ob-
tained, Gowvernment’s prant negotiated,
and buldder's  tenders  invited,  the
manager must await the Department's
approwal  before the building  com-
mences, as lhe present financial posit-
inn of the Tepattment of Education
is critical, and funds are simply ot
availahle for school buildings  sane-
tinned many months ago.

It appears that they have already
dipped into their allocations for 1973-
74 in gome respects, bat it oig cesen-
tial to realise that the contract with
the huilder is entered inte with the
manarer, not with the Department.
Thus, for example, if a new school
ig top he huailt at a cost of CH0,000,
and a povernment prant of as much
as £70.000 js promised, a parish may
find itself fishting a long and tedious
hattle to raise, nol mercly the £10 000
(plus the full cost of the site) but
alzn the £70.000 now lepally due to
the builder. Fyen a delay of a few
meonths can create a crisis with the
banks, and the manager is placed in
an impossible pesilion at Limes.

All this needs to be borne in mind
when so much crticism s levelled
at the clerpy for making such heavy
demamnds from their people. For every
mini-hasilics, justly critised, there are
liferally  dozens of parishes  whose
major expenditure is not on churches,
but on supposedly free primary
sethnod facilities for our children. Free
education, my eye!

Then there is the question of staff,
which might be said to be the real
wiork of a manager, The welfare and
happiness of our teachers can hardly
be exagperated. If a teacher retires,
gets  promotion, goes  elsewhere, or



simply changes his job for family
reasons, the parish priest must Al
the gap.

He will advertise the post, receive
perhaps up to twenty applications,
all of whom he will probabhly inter-
view with their references and in-
spactor's reports, The person of his
choice he will forward to the Depart-
ment for approval.

In the engaging of teachers, the
oft-quoted almighty power to ‘hire
and fire' simply means Lthat the man-
ager saves the State the time and
money involved in advertising for the
position, inlerviewing the applicants,
el

ADMINISTRATION

Very few people have any idea of
the amount of administrative work
bemyr done by the clerical managers,
the number of additional staff the
Department would require to replace
them, the office space to accommo-
date them and the tremendous addit-
wnal cost when  they are already
chronically shorl of meney., If 1 tell
vou that there are 4,000 primary
schools, 15,0000 teachers and 500,000
pupils—round fisures—in Ireland it
may help to give some idea of the

dimensions of the task, in terms of
administration, staffing and building.
There is an immense amount of time
and energy and money involved, and
the funny thing is that yvou may dis-
cuss the pros and cons hut at present
there isn't any possible chance of a
change bhecause the Department
hasn't the money.

The point [ am trying to make is
that the giving of partial grants is a
bad system because it has this essen-
tial weakness: that things which should
he done may not be done because of
it, apart from the time and energy
involved, of which T have already
made mention. And because the man-
ager gets no wage for his work, no
ohe can come along and say, vou're
being paid for it. Mot that everything
should be reduced to money means,
God forbid, but the scripture has it,
that the labourer is worthy of his
hire.

Of course, if you are the well in-
formed terrier-type you may do very
well and primary education may be
cheaper in vour parish — there’s a
thing now, cheaper in one parish than
ancther.

Impartiality, 30 important in the
puhlic offices of democratic state, is
not in sufficient evidence. Pairing and

bargaining in one case and not in
another is the sort of practice to
which 1 refer.

Why are the grants inadequate?
Why are they given only in respect
of heating and cleaning? Why does
the local contribution amount to so
much for new schools or extensions?
Why are the pansh priests the un-
paid managers who administer our
primary schools? Is it because of lack
of money? Of course it is.

Does anyone want a change? Some
would say the parish priests want
to hold on to their power, Many, 1
think, would gladly let it go. But
higher up the Deparlment can’t afford
it and the bishops don't want it

There it is them—the unpaid cler-
ical managers who buy the land,
build, staff and administer our prim-
ary schools, on inadeguate grants and
collecl  the difference  from  their
people through the parish account—
do they lie between in a power game?
That's how our national  schools
work, for better for worse, for richer
for poorer all the days of the forsee-
able future.

(Reprinted with kind permission of
“Irish Press™).
L]

Bishop Joseph B. Brunini of Natchez-Jackson ordaining Rev. Patrick Hayes in Mountmellick on June 12,

1971.



Proud Record

Cinfria

Rock M5,
Church Extension
Clonaghadoo MN.S.

Orwenass Hall

5t Joseph's M5,
St. Patrick’s N.5.

Dear Parishioners

In these pages we give a sum-
mary of the building programme
carried out in our parish over the
twenty year period 1951-1971.

It reveals chat four new schools,
one new church, a major church
extension, and other buildings were
completed. It reveals that the
total cost of these buildings was
almost £350,000, When we deduct
from this figure the State Grants
for school building we find that the
cost o this  parish  was  over
F200,000. If we add to this sum
the cost of mantenance, }lf:al.ing,
cleaning, lighting, insurance, re-
pairs, renewals, ete., the cost to the
parish may be put at the startling
figure of a quarter of a million
pounds. While our parish is not a
big one—the population is slightly
over three thousand—and by no
means a wealthy one, our present
debt is no more than  about
£38,000.

This remarkable achievement has

Clonaghadoo Church

PARISH BUILDING 1951 - 71

Total Cost Grant
22,00 Kil
5,600 4,900
JRLIRL ) Mil
12, 04K 141,500
14,500 Hil
38,000 Mil
130,0:030 125,000
£342, 100 £ 140,400

Cost to Parish
22 000 -

T}

LR ]

1M

——is

14,500

38,000

25,000

£201,700

been brought about by your out-
standing co-operation and per-
severing generosity. We avail of
this opoprrunity to congratulate
and thank everyvone for their praise-
worthy endeavours.

Special thanks are due to those
people and priests who have helped
by making personal interest free
loans to the parish and to those
parishes who gave us temporary
use of their funds at a low rate of
interest.

We have no real worry about
our present debt: we know that the
enthusiastic co-operation of the
past will be continued.

You are rightly proud of wvour
schools and churches; we share
vour pride and joy. Our prayer is
that we may all use them to be-
come better citizens of this world
and of the next for the greater
honour and glory of God.

Last year at a public meeting
vou approved in principle the de-
velopment of St. Joseph's Park. In

this booklet we have onc suggestion
tor such development very kindly
given us shy Mr. Bovd Barrett
Perhaps it may appear visionary,
but isn’t five and ten year planning
the fashion nowadays? Perhaps
the Board of Works will help us
with drainage! Perhaps the Local
Authorities  will  provide public
toilets!  Perhaps we might quality
for an Amenities Grant!  Perhaps
our “Swimming” Minister of State
will cast a favourable cye! Perhaps
we'll win the Sweep!

We thank vou very sincerely for
your generous help to the Parish
Building Programme; to all charit-
able causes—and, indeed, o our-
selves—and we pray that Almighty
God may bless vou all at the Feast
of Christmas and throughout the
New Year. '

Advent 1971

T. O'Shea, C.C. ]. Fleming, C.C.,
C. Crowley, P.P.



MOUNTMELLICK
VOCATIONAL
SCHOOL

Opened September 1966

Boys and Girls follow a three year course
leading to Group Cert. in second year and
Intermediate Cert. in third year

Subjects include:
Irish, English, French, Mathematics, Science, Mechanical
Drawing, Woodwork, Metalwork, History, Geography,
Home Economics, Civics, Commerce, Typewriting,
Shorthand, Religious Instruction, Physical
Education, Elocution.

Headmaster: M. L. De Barra




Turning
your money {o
greater account...

You know that your money
is working to its full potential
in an account with the Bank of
Ireland Group. Whether through
a cheque book or deposit account,
or through any of the Group's
specialised schemes.

Make a point of finding out
in detail how our services will
benefit you.

Bank of Ireland Group

Bank of lreland / National Bank of Ireland / Hibermian Bank



Malone Oil Products

Sole suppliers tothe
Mountmellick Community
Parochial Buildings.

Alsodistributors of all grades
of domestic and agricuttural
oils and lubricants.

Malone Oil Products
Portlaoise 21336.



FOR ALL PAINTING
REQUIREMENTS
CONTACT

BRIAN LYNCH

PAINTING AND DECORATING
CONTRACTOR

CHAPEL STREET
MOUNTMELLICK

CHURCH & SCHOOL
DECORATION
A SPECIALITY



LOREDO
DISPLAYS LTD.

Shop Equipment Manufacturers

2 St. Joseph’s Avenue

Drumcondra, Dublin 9

Telephone 305936

Suppliers of Book Stands to Schools
and Convents

Adjustable Free Standing Steel Shelving
Dump Baskets i Fruit Stands
Window Display Units := Pillar Units
Manufacturers’ Requirements a Speciality

SEND FOR FREE CATALOGUE
Over 40 illustrations




C.Y.M.S. CINEMA
MOUNTMELLICK

The Most Modern
in the Midlands

~ BRING THE FAMILY AND
ENJOY A NIGHT OUT

EVERY NIGHT AT 815 P.M.



_—

CHANGE — CHANGE — CHANGE

IF YOU HAVE TV TROUBLES
AND IF YOU HAVE AN

l/cyeh'

FOR BARGAINS

THEN ITS TIME YOU CALLED TO

- Slot Television Ltd.

Sarsfield Street The Celyon
Mountmellick Portarlington
Phonc 24181

WHERE WE WILL TAKE CARE OF
ALL YOUR TROUBLES

LOW RENT-NQO DEPOSIT-TROUBLE EREE VIEWING
AND NEVER WITHOUT A SET SERVICE
COLOUR OR BLACK AND WHITE RENTAL OR SLOT

You get a better deal from-—

SLOT TV.




CHARLES BREEN

& CO.

BUILDING CONTRACTORS

“VILLA MARIA”
MOUNTRATH, LAOIS

Phone 32188

MAIN CONTRACTORS FOR

Clonaghadoo Church
Shanahoe Church
Errill Church and Presbytery

Renovations to Ballinakill Church




' JOHN B. DOHERTY
LIMITED

MECHANICAL SERVICES
CONTRACTORS

39 AMIENS STREET
DUBLIN 1

Phone 41348/9

' HEATING AND PLUMBING CONTRACIORS TO
MOUNTMELLICK NATIONAL SCHOOLS




o _Drink
and

l Enjoy

DWANS COUNTY
ORANGE

Manufactured by

l Wm. J. Dwan & Sons Limited

Mineral Water Manufacturers and Wholesale Bottlers
Phone : Thurles 8 and Limerick 46130

Shaw’s

Munster and Leinster’s Premier Stores

Branches at Mountmellick, Portlacise, Athy,

Carlow, Roscrea, Fermoy and Waterford.




M. J. Sweeney

THE ELMS,
PORTARLINGTON

TELEPHONE 0502-23136




| J. O'GORMAN & GO. LID.
BUILDERS

Joinery Manufacturers - Church & School
Furniture Specialists

| 2145
ATHLONE . . . phone —_—

Main Contractors to New Primary
Schools, Mountmellick




For your wedding photos--

Book now with--

Arnold
Crawford

STUDIOS
Patrick Street, Mountmellick, Co. Laois

Beautiful Modern Musical and Non Musical Wedding Albums in

Latest Designs. All Albums Inscribed in Gold with Details of
- Your Wedding.

QUOTATION AND DETAILS BY RETURN

Member of the Irish Professional Photographers Association




STRUCTURAL
STEEL

FOR

CLONAGHADOO CHURCH

BY

BUTLERS
ENGINEERING LTD.

Lea Road, Portarlington

Co. Laois

WE DESIGN, FABRICATE AND ERECT

SHOT BLASTING IN OUR WORKS FOR
CLEAN STEEL




STAINED GLASS
WINDOWS

FOR

CLONAGHADOO CHURCH

EXECUTED BY

ABBEY STAINED GLASS
STUDIO

INCORPORATED IN

THE DUBLIN GLASS & PAINT
CO. LTD.

41 MID. ABBEY STREET
DUBLIN 1

Telephone 44385



Seating supplied to
Clonaghadoo Church

by

| THOMAS MANNING

BAGENALSTOWN

Phonc (0503) 21243

Church & School Furniture Manufacturers

MOTEL
MONTAGUE

EMO, PORTLAOISE, IRELAND

Tel. 0502-26154




OWENASS HALL
- MOUNTMELLICK

- Sunday Nights
BINGO

Friday Nights
DANCING
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College of Our Lady

1ctories

of V
MOUNTMELLICK




Legion of Mary: Our Lady, Help of Christians Praesidium meet
on Mondays in Confraternity Room.
Qur Lady of Fatima Praesidium meet on Tuesdays in

Confraternity Room.

St. Vincent de Paul Society: St. Joseph's Conference for men
meet on Thursdays 7.30 p.m. in Confraternity Room.
Our Lady's Conference for Women meet on Monday in

the Owenass Hall at 8 p.m.
Pioneer Total Abstinence Association meet in Mountmellick
each first Sunday after last Mass and in Clonaghadoo

after First Friday Mass.

Our Lady’s Sewing Guild meet in Town Hall each Monday at 8

p.m.

C.Y.M.S. are responsible for the Cinema, Town Hall, Billiard and

Card Room, the Owenass Hall and sportsfield.

Men’s Sacred Heart Sodality: Mass and Holy Communion each

third Monday at 7.30 p.m.

Women's Sacred Heart Sodality: Each first Monday at 7.30 p.m.

s ——— s ———
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